SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 5, 2013
1:33 p.m

1: 33: 52 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Scot t Jepsen, Vi ce Presi dent, Ext er nal Affairs,
ConocoPhillips; Bob Heinrich, Vice President, Finance,
ConocoPhil lips; Todd Abbot, President, Pioneer Natural
Resources Alaska; Ed Kerr, Vice President of Land and
Busi ness Devel opnment, Arnstrong Q| and Gas; Ken Thonpson,
President, Alaska Venture Capital Goup; Senator Hollis
French; Senator Cathy G essel.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Ken Thonpson, President, Al aska Venture Capital G oup.
SUMVARY
SB 21 O L AND GAS PRODUCTI ON TAX

SB 21 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb21



SENATE BILL NO 21

"An Act relating to appropriations from taxes paid
under the Alaska Net Income Tax Act; relating to the
oil and gas production tax rate; relating to gas used
in the state; relating to nonthly installnment paynents
of the oil and gas production tax; relating to oil and
gas production tax credits for certain |osses and
expenditures; relating to oil and gas production tax
credit certificates; relating to nontransferable tax
credits based on production; relating to the oil and
gas tax credit fund; relating to annual statements by
producers and explorers; relating to the determ nation
of annual oil and gas production tax values including
adj ustments based on a percentage of gross value at
the point of production from certain |eases or
properties; maki ng conform ng amendnent s; and
providing for an effective date."

1: 35: 10 PM

SCOIT JEPSEN, VI CE PRESI DENT, EXTERNAL AFFAI RS,
CONOCOPHI LLI PS, discussed the PowerPoint, "Senate Finance
Comm ttee CSSB21" (copy on file).

M. Jepsen displayed slide 2, "Topics."

- Al aska Chal | enges

-CSSB21 vs. ACES (Alaska Cear and Equitable Share
Act)

- Observati ons

M. Jepsen spoke to slide 3, "North Slope Investnent
Chal | enges. "

Chal | enged oil remains

— Conpl ex, high cost wells

— Smal | er reserve targets

— Fault bl ocks, flank oil

Satellites, viscous oil

— Facilities handling ~ three tines as nmuch water
as oi

— Significant resource

ACES tax structure
— High average & nmarginal tax rates
— Progressivity elimnates upside

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



— Tax credits attenpt to offset high tax rates and
hi gh costs. Applies to both new and | egacy fields

BOB HEINRICH  VICE PRESIDENT, FINANCE, CONOCOPHI LLIPS

stated that ConocoPhillips saw many inpedinments to
investment under ACES. He remarked that ACES had high
mar gi nal tax rates, and had a negative inpact on
investnment. He pointed out the chart on slide 3, which
showed the state, federal, and industry share across a

range of prices on a marginal basis. He also noted the
progressivity surcharge, which elimnated the upside that
was traditionally seen at higher oil prices. He |ooked at
the graph on the bottom right corner, which showed
ConocoPhillips per barrel earnings since the tinme that ACES
was inplenented. He noted the changes in crude oil prices
that had an al nost 100 percent swi ng upward since ACES was
i npl enented. He noted that the ConocoPhillips Al aska net
i ncone per barrel only noved from $22 to $25, which was a
| ess than 10 percent novenent. He stressed that the extra
nmoney went to the state, Dbecause of the progressivity
surcharge in ACES.

M. Heinrich addressed slide 4, "Changes to ACES to | nprove
Al aska’s I nvestnent Clinmate."

Eli minate progressivity

Create a flatter tax rate over a broad range of prices
-Producer and State share proportionately as prices
fluctuate and margi ns change

Create a flatter tax rate over a broad range of prices
-Producer and State share proportionately as prices
fluctuate and nmargi ns change

| ssues

-Tax increase at l|lower prices — base rate too
hi gh

-GRE wi Il have m ninmal inpact on | egacy fields.

1:43: 03 PM

M. Heinrich discussed slide 5, "ACES vs. CSSB 21." He
stated that the graph represented ConocoPhillips nodeling
work the conparison on a producer-share basis across a

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



range of prices. He explained that the "producer-share"
meant the percentage of available cash after cost and taxes
that were retained by the producers. He felt that the

representation was an inverse of what the state's
consultant had presented when discussing the state or
f eder al t ake. He remarked that the producer-share

cal cul ati ons depended on many factors including the assuned
cost structure for both a capital and operating costs. He
stated that the Fall 2012 Revenue Sources Book was used in
determining the calculations for FY14. He explained that
the graphic represented the result of FY14 only, as if CS
SB 12 were in effect for the full FY14. He explained that
the first year was used, because the data becane |ess
reliable in forecasting. He felt that the one-year snapshot
reflected a better view of what was actually expected in
the results. He pointed out that the resulting producer
share was represented by the blue line, which was basically
flat across a range of prices starting at approxinately $60
per barrel. He stressed that ConocoPhillips |iked the range
of the curve, because it represented a consistent split of
results across a wide range of prices. He explained that
the gross mninmum tax would kick in under both ACES and CS
SB 21.

M. Jepsen spoke to slide 6, "G oss Revenue Exclusion."

GRE targeted primarily at new fields and extensions of
existing fields

-Extensions identified as participating area (PA)
expansi ons

-Legacy field PA expansions included

-Increase to 30 percent is an inprovenent, but |ess
effective than tax credits

GRE will likely not have significant inpact on |egacy
fields

Legacy Fields are...

-G eatest investnent opportunity resides inside
exi sting | egacy PAs

- About 90 percent of North Slope 2012 production
-Lion’s share of estimated future production
-Key to offsetting ANS decline

M. Jepsen addressed slide 7, "Cbservations."

CSSB21 an i nprovenment over ACES

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



-Provides relatively flat tax rate wth slightly
progressive nature over a broad price range
-Elimnation of progressivity solves the high nmargina
tax probl em

-Makes Alaska nore attractive for investnent at
$100+ prices

-Increase in gross revenue exclusion (GRE) positive

CSSB21 changes for an inproved investnent climte
- Reduce base tax rate

-Create incentives for both new and | egacy fields
—Few | egacy field projects would qualify for GRE

—Consider tax credits associated with production

1: 50: 50 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the intent of the |egislation was
to incentivize nore oil production. He felt that the GRE
process already encouraged greater oil production, but
pointed out that GRE currently only applied to new oil

fields. He wondered if there would be a greater incentive
to pursue developnment and production, if the GRE also
applied to the legacy fields. He further queried if it were
better to nmaintain the capital cost credits, and attach the
credits to actual drilled wells. He felt that capita

credits were too expensive, and were projected to be al nost
$900 mllion in the following year. He remarked that the
capital credits did not result in greater production, but
noted that ACES was not an incentive to produce anyway. M.
Hei nrich responded that GRE increased cash flow over the
long term for a particular investnment. He pointed out that
| ong-term cash flow was key to ConocoPhillips' investnent.
He furthered that ACES decreased the |ong-term cash flow

He felt that the issue could be resolved in the base tax
structure, rather than creating a separate tax structure
for a different class of investnent. He remarked that a tax
credit tracked investnent, but felt that the credit could
be focused on associations with production. He stressed
that the conbination of the base tax rate and investnent
incentives were inpacts on ConocoPhillips wllingness to
i nvest in devel opnment and production in Al aska.

M. Jepsen added that tax credits helped the capital-

intensive projects. He renmarked that sone projects would
need new roads, new pads, new facilities, and new

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



pipelines. He pointed out that the GRE was nuch |ess
effective for those projects, than the capital credits. He
stressed that the legislature needed to find a balance
between the GRE and capital credits.

1:55:49 PM

Co- Chair Meyer remarked that progressivity was not included
in the legislation. He wondered if ConocoPhillips would
like to see bracketed progressivity at very high prices.
M. Jepsen replied that a flat tax rate over a broad range
of prices was npst inportant, because the state and
i ndustry would share equitably as the margins fluctuate. He
furthered that there would be an extreme anmount of revenue
for the state at the $200 per barrel price level with a 65
percent share. He

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if ConocoPhillips would invest in
Al aska to develop the oil that proposed to exist in the
ground, wth the proposed policy change. M. Heinrich

replied that the chairman of ConocoPhillips recently stated
that if the investnment clinmate in Alaska were to change to
t he poi nt wher e it woul d differentiate itself,
ConocoPhi |l l'i ps woul d invest nore noney in Al aska.

M. Jepsen furthered that Alaska published extensive
i nformati on about ConocoPhillips operations in Al aska, so

its changes in investnment and behavior would be very
transparent.

Co- Chai r Kelly referred to a previous presentation
regarding reinbursenent of the royalty. He asked for
ConocoPhillips' opinion regarding that presentation. M.
Jepsen agreed to provide that information.

Senator Bi shop inquired how nmuch it cost to drill per well.
M. Jepsen responded that the cost was variable, but that
it was around $13 mllion.

Senat or Bi shop queried how nuch the cost would be for a
standard well, w thout any lateral attachnments. M. Jepsen
replied that ConocoPhillips had a plot that showed how wel |
costs had increased, on average, over the prior ten years.
He agreed to provide that information.

2:01:17 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



Senat or Bi shop requested sonme theoretical exanples of what
ConocoPhillips mght do to increase production. M. Jepsen
replied that ConocoPhillips was advancing and progressing
current projects, and furthered that |onger term projects
could look attractive and they were already doing work with
vi scous oil.

Co-Chair Kelly remarked that there were current discussions
t hroughout the state regarding the opinion that tax policy
could not reverse the decline in oil production. He
wondered how ConocoPhillips felt about that perspective.
M. Jepsen referred to back up material, not on file, that
reflected the activity over the ten years prior. He pointed
out the new fields that canme on production since 1997, and
the graph used DNR data. He noted a significant anount of
i nvestment and production from new fields. He explained
that the decline rate was fairly significant, but, on an
absol ute basis, was slightly nore nanageable than ten years
prior. He felt that there was currently an opportunity to
| evel the decline, under the right tax framework, and right
set of opportunities. He did not want to nake prom ses
regardi ng decline rates, because there were various factors
that contributed to oil production. He stressed that
approximately 270,000 barrels had been produced from the
new fi el ds.

2:06: 33 PM

Co-Chair Kelly queried the intent of the graph. M. Jepsen
replied that the graph represented all the various fields
t hat have been brought on stream since 1997.

Co-Chair Kelly inquired if there was a policy that pronpted
the increase. M. Jepsen responded that during this tine,
ELF was trending toward zero, and many of the fields had
zero severance tax. He stated that there was a reasonable
tax policy in the state, which was a royalty regine that
provi ded both an upside and downsi de to producers.

Co-Chair Meyer requested that the slide be provided for
conmi ttee nmenbers.

Senator Hoffman directed the presentation back to slide 7
and wondered if the first bullet referred to a reduction
from 35 percent or from 25 percent base rate. M. Jepsen
stated that the comments were in regard to the 35 percent

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



base rate, which was outlined in CS SB 21. He stressed that
the 35 percent base rate was too high

Senat or Dunl eavy queried how ConocoPhillips felt about 20
percent. M. Jepsen replied that at the end of the day, it
woul d depend on what the overall tax structure | ooked |ike.

M. Heinrich interjected that the 25 percent rate was a
poi nt at which Al aska coul d be consi dered conpetitive.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough requested an explanation of the gross
revenue exclusion (GRE) versus the capital credits. She
i nqui red how dol lars versus production related to the gross
revenue exclusion. M. Jepsen asked for clarification.

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered if ConocoPhillips would
rather have a GRE or a capital credit. M. Jepsen responded
that tax credits probably provided the biggest "bang for
the buck." In ternms of addressing the high cost in Al aska,
the capital credits were a better nmechani sm

2:12: 56 PM

Vice-Chair Fairclough observed that nany thought that
capital investnment and enploynent were high on the North
Sl ope, and asked if that point of view was accurate. M.
Jepsen replied that there was a lot of work going on the
North Slope, and stated that the work was associated wth
rebuilding the oil fields. He stated that nost of the
fields were expected to have been fully depleted and
abandoned, but were still active. He stated that the work
was also related to mmintenance and radial work. He
stressed that nost of the enploynent was related to
renewal . He stated that the capital investnent was high,
because of inflation. He referred to a slide (not on file)
that was presented to the House Finance Commttee. He
stated that the slide showed capital investnment by year,
and then showed the capital investnent on an inflation
adj usted basis. He remarked that the capital investnent was
constantly in notion, because investnent depended on
various factors.

Vice-Chair Fairclough inquired if the dotted |line was the
actual investnment. M. Jepsen responded in the affirmative.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if the spike in investnent
was relative to the price of oil or whether there were

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



other factors. M. Jepsen replied that the spikes were a
result of large projects and expanded projects.

2:17:17 PM

\V/ g Heinrich interjected that the grey shaded area
reflected the price at the particular tinme. He pointed out
that ConocoPhillips' <capital prograns had expanded over
several years.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough queried what the inflation adjustnent
would like in ten or five year increnments. She specifically
wondered how nuch noney was |ost over inflation from price
or costs. She shared that steel costs were rising, and
wondered if the inflation represented new increases in
capital investnent, or if it only referred to retrofitting
and refurbishing. M. Jepsen responded inflation inpacts on
investment were a mxture of capital investnments and
r ef ur bi shi ng.

Senator Bishop referred to M. Jepsen's earlier conments
regarding the material inpact of GRE and wondered where the
capital credits should be applied. M. Jepsen understood
the sensitivity regarding the capital credits. He felt that
the capital credits should be targeted towards well-work
rel ated issues.

Senat or Hoffman observed that ConocoPhillips's canps were
full with workers. He wondered if there was a breakdown for
the nunbers of rebuilding and repair, versus potential
devel opnent and new field devel opnent. M. Jepsen responded
in the negative.

Senat or Hof fman wondered if the vast nmjority of expenses
related to rebuilding and repair. M. Jepsen related that
the information could be determined by extrapolating the
age of the fields, and inferring what the activities may
have been. He remarked that, during the particular
tinmeframe, there was not nmuch work related to replacenent
of pipelines, etc.

2:22: 47 PM
AT EASE

2:28: 20 PM
RECONVENED

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



TODD ABBOT, PRESIDENT, PlIONEER NATURAL RESOURCES ALASKA,
began his displayed the PowerPoint, "Senate Finance
Comm ttee Testinony re: CS SB 21(RES)" (copy on file).

M. Abbot discussed slide 2, "Looking Forward Statenents.”

Except for historical information contained herein,
the statenments, charts and graphs in this presentation
are forward-|looking statenments that are nade pursuant
to the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-
| ooking statenents and the business prospects of
Pioneer are subject to a nunber of risks and
uncertainties that may cause Pioneer's actual results
in future periods to differ materially from the
f orwar d- | ooki ng st at enment s. These risks and
uncertainties include, anong other things, volatility
of comodity prices, product supply and demand,
conpetition, the ability to obtain environnental and
other permts and the timng thereof, other governnent
regulation or action, the ability to obtain approvals
fromthird parties and negotiate agreenents with third
parties on nmutually acceptable ternms, international
operations and associated international political and
economc instability, [itigation, the costs and
results of drilling and operations, availability of
equi pnent, services and personnel required to conplete
the Conpany’'s operating activities, access to and
availability of transportation, processi ng and
refining facilities, Pioneer's ability to replace
reserves, inplement its business plans or conplete its
devel opnment activities as scheduled, access to and
cost of capital, t he financi al strength of
counterparties to Pioneer’s credit facility and
derivative contracts and the purchasers of Pioneer’s
oil, NG and gas production, wuncertainties about
estimtes of reserves and resource potential and the
ability to add proved reserves in the future, the
assunptions wunderlying production forecasts, quality
of technical data, environmental and weather risks,
i ncluding the possible inpacts of climte change, and
acts of war or terrorism These and other risks are
described in Pioneer's 10-K and 10-Q Reports and ot her
filings with the Securities and Exchange Comm ssion.
In addition, Pioneer my be subject to currently
unforeseen risks that may have a materially adverse

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



impact on it. Pioneer undertakes no duty to publicly
updat e these statenents except as required by |aw.

M. Abbot addressed slide 3, "Presentation Overview"
- Pi oneer overview
-l nportance of a healthy industry
-Conpetition for capital
-CS SB 21(RES)
-Incentives for Al askan investnents

-C osing thoughts

M . Abbot discussed slide 4, "Pioneer Natural Resources.

Cor porate overvi ew.

- $19 Billion enterprise val ue

- Menber of the S&P 500

- I nvestnent grade rating

- ~3,500 enpl oyees

- $3 Billion capital budget

- $2 Billion cash flow from operations
- Leading perforner in peer group

Al aska Operations Overvi ew.

- 1st independent operator on North Sl ope
- 70+ full-time Al aska enpl oyees

- $14+ mllion in annual wages (enpl oyees)
- 150 - 300 Al aska contract workers

- ~$180 mllion 2013 capital budget

- ~6, 000 BOPD gross production

- Net investor in Al aska

M. Abbot stated that Pioneer spent nore noney than it made
in Al aska.

2:30:34 PM

M. Abbot addressed slide 5, "Pioneer Al aska Profile:
Qoogur uk. "

Expl orati on:
- 11 exploration wells 02 -’05

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



- 1 comercial project

Qooguruk Qui ck Facts:
- 70 percent Pioneer (operator) : 30 percent En

- ~$1 billion capital invested
- 12+ mllion barrels produced
- ~$270 million in credits received

(~7percent of total credits issued by the state)

M. Abbot discussed the tineline at the bottom of the
slide. He related that the proposed changes represented a
fourth change in fiscal structure for Pioneer since it had
been in Al aska.

M. Abbot spoke to slide 6, "What's Next?"
Nuna Project:
Nuna-1 well drilled in 2012
1~50 MMBO of resource potentia
Nuna-2 drilling underway

Phase | devel opnent overvi ew
—@B 2013 sanction deci sion
—~$1 Billion capital required
—2015 first oil

—-14 MBOPD peak production
—-Jobs and econoni c i npact

Potential for 2nd drill site

Must conpete for Ilimted capital against |owrisk
fast-cycle projects in Lower 48

M. Abbot stated that the projects were currently in
appraisal. He shared that Pioneer had recently conpleted
the drilling of their second appraisal well. A frack fleet
was currently nobilized to conplete that project, and there
woul d be a production test, once the project was conplete.
He stressed that the resource was a 50 mllion barrel type
of resource, with 14,000 barrels per day at peak
production. He stressed that there would be $1 billion
worth of capital, and provide many jobs for the state. It
was a relatively near-term project, and had potential for
upside with a second drill side. He remarked that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



project needed to conpete with other projects in the |ower
48 st ates.

M. Abbot discussed slide 7, "Pioneer Conpetitive Resource
Qpportunities.” He stated that Pioneer was planning to
spend $3 billion in capital in the upconm ng year. He noted
that nost of the share would go to Wl fcanp/ Spraeberry,
which was an old and mature basin. It had continued growth
thanks to technology and new ideas. He shared that the
Pi oneer chairman had recently declared that he felt that it
woul d becone the largest oil basin in the world. He stated
that the 2013 production growh in that basin would
increase by 75,000 to 80,000 barrels per day, which was a
15 to 20 percent production growh for a very mature field.
He stated that the Eagle Ford Shale woul d see approxi mately
$575 million in investnment, and the Barnett Shale would see
continual aggressive drilling. He stressed that there was a
deep inventory with 20 percent and above grow h rates.

2:35:26 PM

M. Abbot spoke to slide 8 "CSSB 21(RES) Comments."

Governor’s Q@ui ding Principles:

-Tax policy nust be fair to Al askans

-Any changes to oil taxes should, when taken together,
be geared to foster new production

- Changes should result in a nore sinple tax system and
restore balance to our fiscal system

-Tax policy nust nake Al aska conpetitive for the |ong-
term

Posi ti ves:
-Elimnation of progressivity
-Smal | producer credit extension
-G oss revenue excl usion (GRE)
-Escalating loss carry forward credit
-$5 per barrel tax credit

Negati ves:
—Loss of capital credits
-l ncreased base tax rate
—Conplicated carry-forward | oss cal cul ation
-Di sadvant ages new entrants

M. Abbot discussed slide 9, "Relative Rankings and Policy
Consi deration.” He stated that the slide represented the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



bi g conpanies that contribute to the industry in Al aska. He
pointed out that there was a broad array of people and
conpanies. He remarked that each conpany was a driver in
the financial mar ket . He stressed that traditional
i ndependents were rewarded for production growth and debt
managenent. He stated that while the smaller independents

production may not seem significant, they have a
signi ficant econom ¢ i npact. He stressed that many
conpani es may have noved their investnment to North Dakot a,
if the small independents were not a part of the industry.
2:40: 24 PM

M. Abbot spoke to slide 10, "Eagle Ford Operators and
Conmpani es." He stated that the slide showed a list of al
of the different investors in the Eagle Ford Shale in
Texas. The conpanies that were highlighted in red and blue
were al so businesses in Alaska. He pointed out that there
was a |arge nunber of independent businesses on the |ist,
and furthered that independent businesses drilled over 90
percent of the wells in the US in 2010. He remarked that
the large resource plays were driven by small and m dsize
conpani es that were becom ng innovative and attenpting to
chal l enge sonme of the harder assets. He stressed that nany
of the fields were not driven by the |arge conpanies taking
a dom nant position.

Vice-Chair Fairclough directed the presentation to slide 9
and inquired why the three conpanies were in red. M. Abbot
replied that those conpanies were considered "small" and
"I ndependent " conpani es.

M. Abbot discussed slide 11, "Typi cal New Proj ect
Profile.™ The red bars were the facilities under
construction and were wusually a nulti-year process; the
green bars reflected drilling activity; and the dotted |ine

was project production.

M. Abbot spoke to slide 12, "M d-Sized Producer." He
stated that the slide depicted how Pioneer would evaluate a
new project. He explained that the hashed bars showed the
di scounted, after tax cash flows for each year under ACES
He furthered that the red and green bars reflected what
woul d occur under the current proposal. He stressed that
the loss of the credits would result in greater capital up
front. He stated that Pioneer was a net investor, and had
not yet turned a profit, so their taxes would be due in the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



future. He remarked that the benefits of the current
proposal would not occur for nmany years down the |ine.

2:46:42 PM

M. Abbot discussed slide 13, "New Entrant-Stand Al one
Project.” He pointed out that a new entrant would face a
worse situation than a conpany |ike Pioneer, under the new
proposal. He remarked that the proposal would be nore
beneficial to a large producer that had a current tax
litability, than to a snmaller conpany.

M. Abbot spoke to slide 14, "I ndustry Spending on North
Slope." He stated showcased the inpact of credits directly.
He stated that the slide showed a five year history on
capi tal expenditures by category, and where the credit were
applied. He pointed out that 43 percent of the credits were
directed at new wells, and 42 percent of the credits were
directed at facilities to allow those wells to produce. He
stressed that the production was declining, but that did
not mean that the credits did not have a positive inpact.

M. Abbot discussed slide 15, "Fostering New Production
Wiy Credits Matter.™

Benefits to State
—Credits directly encourage activity in Al aska
-Jobs, direct and indirect (9x multiplier)
-More wells
- More oi
-More royal ties, taxes and throughput

Benefits to Devel oper
—Reduces investor risk
—l nproves small project econom cs
—l nproves financial performance
-Doesn’t increase debt
—Bui | ds heal thy industry
—Strengt hens conpetitiveness

2:51:45 PM

M. Abbot spoke to slide 16, "CSSB 21(RES) d osing
Thoughts. "

Pr os
—El i m nates progressivity

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



- Shares upsi de potenti al

-l nproves conpetitiveness
—GRE reduces tax for new oil
—Extends smal | producer credit

Cons
—Elim nation of credits increases investor risk
Requires nore upfront capital
—l ncreased base tax rates
—Does not sinplify tax cal cul ations
Compl ex carry-forward | oss cal cul ati ons
—Does not strongly notivate additional investnent

CS SB 21(RES) suggestions
—Targeted <credits for new facilities/well related
costs
—All ow targeted credits to be redeemabl e/ transferable
—Allow credits to be taken against any paynent to the
state

M. Abbot stressed that credits were inportant for the
smaller oil conpanies. He stated that a healthy debate
needed to be held regarding how the credits were targeted
and added that the credits should be transferable.

2:55: 09 PM

Co-Chair Meyer pointed out that capital credits had gotten
the desired result in the past and asked how the comittee
could nmake sure that a simlar nmechanism would get nore oi
in the pipeline. M. Abbot responded that for a conpany to
claim the credits it had to be noving forward with new
devel opnent and producti on.

Senator Bishop noted that, according to slide 14, 42
percent of the credits were for facilities. M. Abbot
agr eed.

Senator Bishop inquired what those percentages equated to
barrels of oil produced. M. Abbot did not have that data.

Senator Bishop noted that was the inportant question and
t hanked M. Abbot for Pioneer's effort to hire Al askans.

Co-Chair Meyer asked if Pioneer had built their own

processing plant. M. Abbot replied that Pioneer shared a
facility with KRE

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 16 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



Co-Chair Meyer recalled that there were five producers in
Pi oneer's | ocati on.

2:59: 37 PM

Senator Hoffrman inquired if Pioneer was suggesting that
there should be changes to the way the credits currently
apply. M. Abbot responded that sonme of the credits for
proj ects encouraged new production, but some were not. He
felt that the focus for credits should be on new wells and
facilities.

Senator Hoffman stated that the goal should be new
exploration and that wi thout exploration there would be no
new oil. He inquired if exploration was a priority anong
the three categories. M. Abbot replied that exploration
was extrenely risky and that a large anount of capital was
spent on a project.

Senator Hof fman observed that the purpose was to get nore
oil in the pipeline. He acknow edged that the costs for
explorers was high and noted that the governor's goal was
to get new barrels of oil on the line. He inquired if the
credits were nore valuable to Pioneer than the other
options in the resources conmttee. M. Abbot responded
that the credits were nore valuable to Pioneer. He opined
t hat devel opnent, and not exploration, would get new oil in
t he pipe line.

3:05: 01 PM

Senator Hoffman wondered if the well drilling and
devel opment dollars add nore oil to the pipeline. M. Abbot
replied in the affirmative.

Senat or Hof fman asked how facilities encouraged new oil in
the line. M. Abbot replied that he was unsure, but noted
that a large investnent applied to nbst projects.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough observed that new exploration could
put new oil in the pipeline eventually. She stressed that
the nost imediate oil was in currently fields, but felt
that it was nerely a short-term solution. M. Abbot
responded that slide 11 showed that the capital cost was
post-sanction dollars. He remarked that the capital cost
did not include the exploration or appraisal phase. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 17 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



remarked that there were nmany years of appraisal and
exploration before the investnent return could be obtained.
He felt that the credits should be focused on the near-
term md-term and long-term

Vice-Chair Fairclough noted that there were different
i nvest ment strategies for di fferent forns of oi
producti on.

3:09:48 PM

ED KERR, VICE PRESIDENT OF LAND AND BUSI NESS DEVELOPMENT,
ARMSTRONG O L AND GAS, read from a prepared testinony (copy
on file):

Thank you for giving ne the opportunity to speak with
the Senate Finance Committee today about the oil and
gas industry on the North Slope. W are a strong
supporter of SB 21 we believe that the passage of this
bill will not only result in significant investnent on
the North Slope, it wll serve as a catalyst to
i ncreasing production as well. Sone of you may have
heard Bill Arnstrong nake a presentation to the Senate
Resources Committee a couple of weeks ago. If you
heard that presentation you probably already know that
it has been our opinion that you in the Senate have
been inundated with so much information that | cannot
begin to imagine how you can process it all. | have
been in this business for nore than 30 years and have
experience in nunerous states and sone various other
regions in the world and | have to tell you, it is
incredibly difficult to keep up wth all of the
information that is being provided with regard to SB

21.
For this reason | will not have a power point, | would
rather talk to you and see iif you think | have

anything to add wth respect to how Alaska can
increase its production in a manner that is fair to
Al askans and is sonething that the oil conpanies can
work with. Today | would like to keep things pretty
sinple and keep to the fundanentals. The only thing
that really tells the story on the North Slope is what
does its production profile look like and is there
anything on the horizon that will help it.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 18 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



As | was trying to get ready to talk with you about
this I had an internal fight with nyself. It rem nded
me of ny high school English class when we read the
Di ckens classic, A Tale of Two Cities. The first part
of opening line of the book is "It was the best of
tinmes, it was the worst of tinmes." Quys this describes

the oil industry on North Slope and where it is at
this point in tinme better than anything | can think
of .

| know revenues to the State have been up over the
| ast few years and | know that you as nenbers of the
| egislature have an inportant duty to nake certain
that the State gets its fair share and nmaxim zes the
state's fiscal position. The hard part of the story is
when you |look to the future and the fact that while
the North Slope is one of the nost remarkable
petrol eum provinces in the world, it is the only
petrol eum province in the US that is not enjoying the
benefit of the amazing technol ogical advancenents in
hori zontal drilling and stage frack technology. | know
you have seen the sanme graph in probably ten different
presentations of the North Slope's production decline
while Texas and North Dakota have production
increases. Last Friday the ADN reported on the front
page that Texas has doubled its production since 2010,
doubled its production in 3 years, amazing (especially
given the fact that Al aska has experienced about a 6
percent annual decline during that period), and we all
know North Dakota passed Alaska |ast year to becone
the second l|argest producer in the United States. |
never thought | would see that. | know soneone can
| ook at that data set and feel that this is the worst
of tinmes because as we all know the states revenue is
only as good as the production and if the production
keeps dropping at this rate, soon the state will have
big issues with its budget.

| don't know how long TAPS can last at the current
decline rate and frankly that's not the question
anyone should be asking, we should be asking, "How in
the heck can we have one of the greatest petroleum
provinces in the world and get beat out by North
Dakota in daily production. Guys as a petrol eum system
North Dakota is a Jr. Hgh team and Alaska is
Prof essional team there is no way this should happen,
but it has and we have to ask ourselves how did we get

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 19 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



to this spot and what will it take for Al aska to take
its rightful spot as the top producing state in the
nati on.

Before | give you any nore of ny thoughts | should
probably take a second to tell you a little about
Arnstrong Ol & Gas and what we have done in Al aska.
We are an independent oil and gas conpany headquarter
in Denver, Colorado. W would probably be considered a
bit of new type of conpany for the North Slope as we
are privately owned, we carry no debt and as such we
do everything out of our own pockets, every decision
we make is based on the bottom |ine and not what some
stock analyst on Wall Street thinks or says.

| am a mnority owner in Arnstrong and have been
involved in Alaska since the beginning. W began
studying the North Slope diligently in the late 90s

we made our first |ease acquisition in the early
2000s. Qur business nodel is to establish significant
exploration and developnent projects through the
utilization of all of the technology available to our
i ndustry. It is our opinion that we have the best
scientist in the world these scientists have an
extrenely broad and diverse experience |evel that
af fords us a perspective that nost people do not have.
Most of our GCeoscientist spent their early years with
Exxon.

At any rate the first concept we pulled together on
the North Slope was what is today the O3 field. W
initially established the concept through acquisition
of | easehold and technical data and then we brought in
Pioneer to help us develop the field. Subsequently we
brought a conpany called Kerr MGee into to help us
define and develop what 1is today known as the
Ni kai tchuq field that is operated by ENI. W currently
operate the North Fork Gas Field in South Central
Alaska and on the North Slope we are partners wth
Repsol E&P USA where we currently have 3 rigs running
on the North Sl ope.

If I can | would like to take second to apol ogi ze for
the lack of a polished presentation for you today.
The fact is | amnot that good of a public speaker and
| didn't know I was coming here until a few days ago,
so ny apologies. Wat you wll hear from nme are

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 20 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



observations of what we as a conpany have found is the
nunber one critical attribute any area needs in order
to have a successful thriving oil and gas industry
that will either sustain itself or grow even | arger.

The nost critical barometer for the health of a
producing region is the rig count (it is the canary in
the mne). Depending on the week, you see Alaska's
fluctuate between 6 and 14. Let me put that in
perspective, the Perman Basin not all of Texas, |ust
the Perman Basin is at 430. That is around 43 tines
greater than all of Alaska by itself. Assum ng each
area drills and conpletes a well in a couple of nonths
that nmeans in one year the Perman Basin brings on an
additional 2580 wells while all of Al aska would bring
on about 60. Wth this netric in mnd it is easy to
see how Alaska is drifting the wong direction with
its production. You can apply this nmetric to any basin
or state and you wll get the sanme answer (North
Dakota is at 178 rigs, Cklahoma has 190), in order for
Al aska to continue to be considered relevant in the
petrol eum industry sonething nust be done to nake it
conpetitive with the other states and regions of the
wor | d.

When | | ook at sonme of the public conpanies | see such
amazing results. Pioneer recently reported it had over
36,000 net resource locations with potential in excess
of 8BBO. EOG Resources has had oil production growth
of 35 percent in 2010, 52 percent in 2011 and 39
percent in 2012, they have a drilling inventory that
will keep them busy for the next 15 years even if they
do no new business. My point is that this story is
occurring in tons of conpanies all through the |ower
48, states |ike Pennsylvania are on the rise and the
state of Alaska needs to do sonething to make itself

nore conpetitive. W feel like SB 21 is a great start
to getting Al aska conpetitive with the rest of the
wor | d.

| think it is inportant to note that SB 21 needs to be
passed as it is and possibly wth sonme mnor
i nprovenents in order to nmke certain Al aska becones
conpetitive with the rest of the world. W need to
make certain the GRE stays in place as it is and is
not limted to the first 7 years. A study of the new
fields on the North Sl ope show how tine consum ng and

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 21 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



difficult it is to bring fields on line and as such
you need the CGRE to be effective throughout the life
of the field. The nonetizing of the EIC will serve to
continue to encourage new entrants with new ideas to
come to the North Sl ope.

The fact is +the North Slope is renote, cold
expensive, with trenendous regulatory issues and SB 21
is needed or Alaska will not be considered conpetitive
with the rest of the world. It is next to inpossible
to convince a substantial conpany to cone to the North
Slope to develop new fields when the states own
experts rate the state of Al aska worse than Kazakhstan
for new field developnent. It is inportant to note
that by supporting SB 21 as a new entrant we are
actually helping the state's fiscal position. W are
wal king away from the cash reinbursenent from the
state of the LCF and QCE, so that we can have a stable
tax regine. At the end of the day the state has only
upside with regard to the new field portion of SB 21.

We do think SB 21 sinplifies the tax code, we think it
is fair to Al askans, that it is durable and that it
makes Al aska conpetitive. | believe that you need al
parts of SB 21 for the state to be successful. The
state needs the legacy field provisions of SB 21 to
pass so that the fields |ike Prudhoe Bay and KRU can
provide quick inmediate barrels into TAPS and keep the
transportation costs on TAPS from i ncreasing.

The state al so desperately needs SB 21 to pass so that
new entrants will be encouraged to conme to the NS and
invest, this is the future of the North Sl ope.
Currently 92 percent of all production from the North

Sl ope cones from 2 operators, | know of no other
significant petroleum province in the world that has
this fact set. As a conparison the top 20 operators

in Perm an make up 47 percent of the basins production
and when | asked our research guys how many make up 92
percent, | was told that the nunber was so high that
it would take a trenmendous anount of tine to figure
that out. On the North Slope the top two operators
drilled 86 percent of all of the wells in the basin,
in the Perman Basin the top 20 operators nake up 35
percent of all wells drilled.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 22 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



None of this is the operators fault they are doing
their job, but it does show that there is a desperate
need for nore players on the North Slope and in order
to have any inpact this change needs to be done now.
As an exanple from the tine we started working on O3
until the first production came out of the field it
took 10 years, so as you can see sonething needs to be
done right now

Further evidence of the North Slope not being
conpetitive can be found within its | ease sales. Since
we made our first bid in Alaska in 2001, a very
successful sale would be one that is considered to
bring in around $10MM wth around 6 successfu
bi dders, conpare this against the GOM sal es that have
nore bidders and as an exanple on the last Central GOM
sale had one tract that brought in $157MM that one
tract being well in excess of the last 10 state North
Sl ope Lease sales. This is evidence of a system that
needs fi xi ng.

So enough about the negative news. The good news is |
can tell you from the perspective of the conpany that
brought Pioneer, EN and Repsol to the North Slope
that there are a |lot of conpanies that would
desperately like to do business on the North Sl ope but
they have shied away because of the ACES tax system
To be sure the costs concern them and | believe we
need to work hard to streamline the permtting of
projects on the North Slope, but | believe the primry
thing that keeps them away is the current ACES tax
system

SB 21 is a huge step in the right direction to getting
new entrants on the North Slope as well as getting
production from new fields up and running, increasing
the life of TAPS and providing high paying jobs for
Al askans in the process. There is an incredible step
function change in our industry that is going on right
before our eyes and if Al aska doesn't nake the changes
provided for in the Governor's bill this revolution
has the potential to pass over Alaska. So these are ny
t houghts, but | would really like to talk about this
with all of you. This is an amazing time in our
business and | want to make certain that you guys ask
any question at all that you feel should be discussed.
| love this business and think that is the best way to

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 23 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



get the heart of the discussion so please ask nme any
guestions you want about taxes, permtting, potential
of the North Slope (it is huge) or anything else you
want to tal k about.

3:31: 38 PM

Senator Dunl eavy wondered how the |andscape of the North
Slope would look like in 5 years, if the bill were to be
adopted. M. Kerr responded that Arnstrong would nove
forward with new projects, if the bill was adopted.

Senator Dunleavy inquired if Arnmstrong would be producing
nmore oil if the bill passed. M. Kerr responded in the
affirmative, but stressed that there were nmany permtting
i ssues that nust be addressed.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the state was trying to deal with
permtting issues.

3:34:33 PM

Senat or Bi shop wondered if the Baakan or Eagl eford had any
tax credits. M. Kerr responded that they did not have tax
credits. He remarked that those locations had quick
t ur nover time, and made noney relatively quickly.
Conversely, the North Slope presented challenges, because
of its renoteness. He furthered that Arnstrong woul d rather
forgo the credit in favor of a nore reasonable tax rate.

Senat or Bishop queried the turnaround tinme in North Dakota
fromthe deal with the |landower to the drilling tinme. M.
Kerr replied that the turnaround tinme could be a short as
t hree nont hs.

Senator Bishop requested slide 4 of Econ One's presentation
and offered that he felt that the conmittee substitute nmade
Al aska conpetitive with the other states.

Co-Chair Kelly requested a description of Texas' oil tax
regime. M. Kerr replied that that it was a flat tax rate.
He stated that Arnstrong did not currently have any
production in Texas.

Co-Chair Kelly queried M. Kerr's opinion about a 63

percent governnment take. M. Kerr asked for further
clarification.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 24 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



Co-Chair Kelly wondered how he felt about replacing ACES
wth a flat governnent take across all prices and
production. M. Kerr stated that it would be inappropriate
for himto respond, because he did not have the paraneters
in order to forma responsi bl e opinion.

3:39: 07 PM

Senator Dunleavy inquired if Arnmstrong was saying it
accepted the commttee substitute. M. Kerr responded that
if he had to choose between the proposal and ACES, he would
choose the proposal. He stated that pioneer had 40,000
| ocations and that he |ooked through Alaska wth a
different |ens.

Vice-Chair Fairclough inquired if the bill had a positive
effect on "wildcat" conpanies. M. Kerr replied that the
proposal was better than ACES. He furthered that Arnstrong
was trying to plan for long-termfull-cycle econom cs.

Vice-Chair Fairclough queried if Arnstrong was currently
producing in Alaska. M. Kerr responded that Arnstrong was
producing in Southcentral Al aska, with approximtely 13.5
mllion cubic feet per day.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if Arnstrong usually saw
devel opment and production through, or if Arnstrong sold
| ocations. M. Kerr responded that Arnmstrong did both of
t hose t hings.

Vice-Chair Fairclough inquired what the best conponent
under CSSB 21 (RES) conpared to ACES. M. Kerr replied that
it was the elimnation of progressivity and how the tax was
cal cul at ed.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if Armstrong or Repsol was the
operator on the North Slope. M. Kerr replied that Repso
was the operator on the North Sl ope.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that Arnstrong was the operator in
Cook Inlet, and therefore was an operator and a producer.
M. Kerr agreed with that summati on.

3:43: 24 PM
AT EASE

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 25 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



3:48: 45 PM
RECONVENED

KEN THOWVPSON, PRESI DENT, ALASKA VENTURE CAPI TAL GROUP (via
tel econference), introduced hinself.

3:50: 37 PM

M. Thonpson spoke to slide 2, "Wy Consider Qur Conpany's
Per specti ves?"

1) Most active exploration conpany exploring and
devel opi ng sole on North Slope state |ands
a) Drilled 10 of 36 exploration wells on state
lands in 2007-12 (nore than COP, BP, XOM EN,
Repsol , Arnstrong conbi ned)
b) 105,000 |eased acres in 3 core areas in JV
partnership with Ranshorn Exploration (affiliate
of |arge Nabors Industries)

2) ~$200 MM invested to date in Alaska North Slope
proj ects..3 discoveries, acquired discovery

3) Mustang devel opnent project under construction..$577
MM capi tal, 44 MVBO

4) Thr ee ot her devel opnent proj ects in
perm tting/ concept ual engi neering st ages. >$1.5
billion capital

5) First production and cash flow to state and our
conpani es..startup of Miustang in 3Q 2014

6) On investnment of $200 MM received refunded tax
credits totaling $69 MM but State will receive back
this amount in the first year of Mistang production
and $1.2 billion over field life.

7) Experience in bringing other independents to Al aska
and in raising capital for Al aska

\Yg Thonpson discussed slide 3, "North Slope Drilling

Reéults and Success." He explained that the slide showed
the activity since 1999, which was the year of the first
| ease. He shared that nost of the drilling had occurred

during the recent three to four years.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 26 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



M. Thonpson spoke to slide 4, "What Difference can CQur
Conmpany make?" He shared that it was interesting that the
smal ler fields could add up to over 50,000 barrels of oil a
day. He pointed out that the devel opnents he was show ng on
the slide could offset decline. He stated that if the major
conpani es had incentives in |egacy fields, the Al aska curve
woul d turn upward. He opined that Al aska needed exploration
and producti on.

3:59:10 PM

M. Thonpson di scussed slide 5, "W See Positives in SB 21
CS to Help G ow Production.”

1) Increases "Carry Forward Loss Credit (CFL)" from 25
percent to 35 percent and interest on unused credits.

Positive: incrementally nore future cash flow to
re-deploy into facilities and drilling

2) Extends "Small Producers" credits from 2022, reduces
smal | producers' tax bill by $12 MM yr.

Positive: nore cash flow for small producers to
re-deploy into facilities and drilling

3) Specifies 20 percent QCE tax credit certificate
paynment in single year vs. 2 but does elimnate QCE on
12/ 31/ 13

Positive: nore imedi ate cash to put into Mistang
devel opnment facilities and drilling 2014

Negative: no QCE paynent in 2015 to re-deploy
into Mustang devel opnent drilling

4) Elimnates progressivity factor, increases base tax
rate from 25 percent to 35 percent but provides $5/bbl
produced bbl credit

Positive: Elimnating progressivity sinplifies

tax calculation and will be a public relations
plus for AK
Negative: Increase in base tax rate from 25
percent to 35 percent not expected, but partially
of fset by...

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 27 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



Positive: $5/bbl produced bbl credit Dbetter
bal ances relative state/producer takes at |ow oi
prices

5) For new oil, increases "20 percent GRE' to 30
percent GRE and anends definition of |eases that can
be included for this GRE

Positive: Should incentivize new oil production
on nore |leases, also help during low oil price
cycl es

6) Renpbves old distance limtations and allows for a
30 per cent "Expl oration | ncentive Credit" for
exploration wells drilled that t ar get new Oi
di scoveries regardl ess of |ocation

Huge Positive: For exploration conpanies |ike
ours-will result in nore conpanies and nore oil
on State | ands

7) Overall, thanks for the changes in the CS, this
should help in attracting new capital and |eveling oi
production

4:04:50 PM

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if the $5/bbl was a good offset
against the rise from 25 percent to 35 percent. M.
Thonmpson replied that it only partially offset the
decrease, but furthered that the CS was nore attractive at
oi | prices.

SB 21 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
4:08:32 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:08 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 28 03/05/13 1:33 P. M



